
Board of Finance Page 1 of 4 Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2016    

           DRAFT 
   MONROE BOARD OF FINANCE 

 Monroe, Connecticut 
 
                Meeting Minutes 

         May 18, 2016    
  
Present:                    Chairman Michael Manjos   

Vice-Chairman John Ostaszewski  
Board Member Debra Dutches 
Board Member Christine Rigby 
Board Member Ted Quinlan 

           
Also present:             First Selectman Steve Vavrek 

Finance Director Ron Bunovsky, Jr.  
                                    Deputy Finance Director Heidi Meade 

Tax Collector Manny Cambra 
Town Treasurer Debbie Heim 
 

CALL TO ORDER-Chairman Manjos called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.                   
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES 
Motion to Approve the Amended Meeting Minutes and Voting Record of April 28, 2016 
Motion: (T. Quinlan) 
To approve the amended meeting minutes and voting record 
Second: (C. Rigby) 
Discussion: Vice-Chairman Ostaszewski noted that Board Member Rigby was not present at the 
April 28th meeting though she appeared as seconding the motion to adjourn.  The Voting Record 
will be amended to reflect Board Member Dutches made the motion to adjourn. 
Motion passed 5 (Manjos, Ostaszewski, Dutches, Rigby and Quinlan)-0 
 
FIRST SELECTMAN’S COMMUNICATIONS-First Selectman Vavrek had sent the Board 
members information on the state budget.  He said that the Town is losing funds on public and 
non-public school transportation, the Pequot Mohegan Grant though they did get money on the 
MERS revenue sharing.  Board Member Dutches noted that ECS money is higher than what it 
was and she asked about the mill rate of 37 on motor vehicles.  Mr. Bunovsky said that was the 
cap on the motor vehicles which changed but the Town is staying with the mill rate of 32 
because they already set the mill rate for vehicles.  First Selectman Vavrek continued that there 
have been several internal meeting with the Board of Education and IT and on Monday, 
Chairman Manjos and Ken Kellogg from Town Council will discuss the building usage. He 
added that there are several interested renters and the drop-dead dead for the building will be 
confirmed at that meeting. First Selectman Vavrek acknowledged Mr. Bunovsky, Ms. Meade and 
Chairman Manjos for their efforts and work on the budget.  
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION-There was none at tonight’s meeting. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION-There was none at tonight’s meeting.   



Board of Finance Page 2 of 4 Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2016    

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
WMNR Budget Presentation-WMNR is a special revenue fund; it uses no tax dollars and it 
pays the Town $35,000 for their assistance with the Finance Department and Human Resources.  
They have their own IT staff.  The WMNR Commission has approved the budget and if it gets 
approval from the Board of Finance, they will bring it to Town Council for their approval.  
Board Member Quinlan asked if they can pull the  
$75,000 from the fund; the response was that they could; no transfer is necessary.  
 
Motion to Approve WMNR’s budget 
Motion: (D. Dutches) 
To approve the budget 
Second: (J. Ostaszewski) 
Discussion: None 
Motion passed 5 (Manjos, Ostaszewski, Dutches, Rigby and Quinlan)-0 
 
Fire Department Apparatus Discussion-Representatives from the Fire Departments were 
present at tonight’s meeting. They have had two meetings with Strategic Planning after their last 
meeting with the Board of Finance and it was noted that it was passed at the Town Council 
meeting on Monday.  The Fire Departments were told to bring it to the Board of Finance 
regarding funding.  Chairman Manjos asked if there were any changes or updates since they last 
received the figures; the figures have stayed basically the same and the original vendor came 
down to $3.7 million.  Chairman Manjos asked if there was a feasibility study of all the 
departments; the department representative said that was outside of fire apparatus but Chairman 
Manjos said that it was all connected.  Another representative from the Fire Department said that 
they are falling into a backlog on the apparatus and Strategic Planning wanted to keep the 
apparatus and feasibility study separate.  The plan is to have the Chiefs get together and craft a 
document of bullet points highlighting what needs to be included in the study.  The study, which 
takes a year to complete, is conducted by an outside agency with a group of approximately a 
dozen professionals such as former Chiefs and Emergency Services personnel who come in and 
study stations locations, dispatch, response times, apparatus and the department guidelines.  The 
discussion returned to apparatus and it was stated that the departments are downsizing by 
consolidating two vehicles into one.  Board Member Quinlan asked, without a study, how were 
the number of trucks determined.  The response was that they were determined by the funding 
the departments received and what trucks were getting the job done.  The Monroe fleet consists 
of 2 engines, both dual source trucks, and a  ladder truck , Stepney has 3 engines, 1 rescue and 1 
ladder and Stevenson has 2 engines, 2 tankers and 1 rescue  though they will be reducing to 4 
vehicles.  Board Member Dutches said that five of the six trucks being replaced are owned by the 
Town and it is her understanding that if they generate income from being sold, the funds can 
either draw down the cost of the replacements or go back into the General Fund.  Chairman 
Manjos said there is no set policy and either way is an option.  Chairman Manjos asked about the 
life cycle of the trucks; the NSPA standard on a pumper is 15 years front line and 3-5 maximum 
as a reserve, a ladder truck is 20 years front line, a rescue truck is 18-20 years and a tanker is 
approximately 20 years.  It was stated that everything being replaced is past front line life 
expectancy and one truck may be able to put into reserve status.  A representative from the Fire 



Board of Finance Page 3 of 4 Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2016    

Department said it would behoove the Town to put aside $600,000 annually to avoid having to 
figure out how to buy 6 trucks at a time though it was noted that there may be cost savings to 
purchasing all at once.  Board Member Dutches asked if the Town’s purchasing procedures 
would be followed; Chairman Manjos confirmed they would.   The Fire Departments have prices 
from three manufacturers and they are in agreement over their first choice.  The build time is at 
least a year from the time a deal is signed and accepted by the manufacturer; Chairman Manjos 
said that they can get the funding into two budget years easily with proper timing but there needs 
to be a plan.  He said that they will fund the study; the representative agreed that once the study 
is done, it will provide a good road map of an appropriate replacement schedule.  Board Member 
Dutches said she wanted to have EMS included in the study.  The additional cost to add EMS to 
the study is approximately $10,000 for a total of $50,000.  First Selectman Vavrek said that the 
Fire Departments have gone above and beyond to coordinate as many services as possible and 
that “we need to make this a Town effort.”  The next step is for the Departments to prioritize the 
trucks, work on the study, provide numbers and formalize it; Chairman Manjos said the Fire 
Department will be on next month’s agenda to continue the discussion.  Chairman Manjos added 
once the specifications are worked out, he wants the Departments to confer with Mr. Bunovsky to 
talk to the manufacturer’s finance people to determine how financing can be structured.   
 
Food Pantry Generator Discussion-Chairman Manjos noted the Food Pantry doesn’t have a 
generator and this is an obvious need.  There is a generator at Chalk Hill which was paid for by 
Sandy Hook and will be the Town’s property as of June 30th.   As Chalk Hill is not a delegated 
shelter, at the moment, the generator is not essential for that location.  Chairman Manjos stated 
that Mr. Nowacki said that transferring the generator to the Food Pantry just needs some basic 
wiring.   
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Discussion of Chalk Hill- 
Discussion of Proposed Consulting Engagement with O’Connor Davies-Marcia Marien from 
PKF O’Connor Davies was present at tonight’s meeting.  Board Member Quinlan said that he 
and Chairman Manjos had discussed addressing and prioritizing the issues the auditors had 
brought forth.  It was noted that the Board is looking for guidance and idea of the costs.  
Chairman Manjos said that he would like to address a few of those issues a year.   Board 
Member Dutches said she did not think they discussed Addendum A which had 8 items the 
auditor felt needed addressing; Chairman Manjos said that the assumption is that some of the 
issues would be on the list of priorities and that  they wanted Ms. Marien  to prioritize them  to 
determine the biggest risk factors.  Ms. Marien suggested PKF O’Connor Davies write a 
proposal outlining what they think the Town should be doing in terms of risk and she felt the 
Town could benefit from efficiency suggestions as well.  She stated she will work with their 
consulting department to craft the proposal.  
Discussion of Procedure to Re-state the Budgets for EMS, Health Dept. and Town Attorney 
for the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2017-Ms. Marien noted that EMS is 
outside of the budget and she understands that the Town wants to bring that into their budget for 
2016-17; Mr. Bunovsky added that they also want to restate it for 2015-16.  Ms. Marien said 
there were a few different ways to do this and there was a review of the options.  One of the 
possibilities is to provide reconciliation on the EMS revenue and expenses; Mr. Bunovsky said 



Board of Finance Page 4 of 4 Meeting Minutes 
May 18, 2016    

that they have already started collapsing EMS into the General Fund and he is looking for more 
procedural guidance on moving this forward.  Ms. Marien will provide a letter detailing the 
options to the Board for their review and further discussion.  
Discussion of Town Attorney and Process of Approving Legal Bills-There was no discussion 
at tonight’s meeting.   
 
REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REPORTS 
Tax Collector-Mr. Cambra said that the total to budget is 100.29% with his projection being 
101.42 -101.50 for end of year. He said that he will be very aggressive on motor vehicles and 
that there will be considerably fewer dollars from the State in the years to come.  He added that 
next year there will be a tax sale. 
 
BOARD OF EDUCATION CORRESPONDENCE-There was no report or update at this 
meeting.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to Adjourn at 9:15 p.m. 
Motion: (T. Quinlan) 
Motion to adjourn 
Second: (C. Rigby) 
Discussion: None 
Motion passed 5 (Manjos, Ostaszewski, Dutches, Rigby and Quinlan)-0 
 
    
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
         
        Diane Behringer 
        Board of Finance Clerk 


